REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL:  AHRQ-04-0012

TITLE:  PATIENT SAFETY RESEARCH COORDINATING CENTER 

(ISSUED MAY 13, 2004)

PROPOSAL DUE:  JULY 13, 2004, 12:00 PM NOON

(LOCAL PREVAILING TIME)

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO RFP, DATED JUNE 7, 2004
This amendment provides responses to 34 questions.

1. Would a successful offeror of this contract be deemed ineligible to apply for AHRQ patient safety grants during the three years that the offeror is the coordinating center?

Response:  At the present time, AHRQ does not foresee a need to deem the successful offeror ineligible for other patient safety grants or contracts during the performance period of the contract.  Since it is difficult to anticipate future needs and circumstances, AHRQ will retain the ability to place restrictions or to deem certain organizations ineligible for future grants or contracts at a time when there is sound reason to do so.  If necessary, restrictions would be placed on the future grants or contracts in question at the time they are announced.    
2. Is the organization that is awarded the Patient Safety Research Coordinating Center (PSRCC)  contract prohibited from applying for any AHRQ grants or other contracts pertaining to patient safety?  If yes, does this restriction apply even if the proposed investigators and/ or staff to be named in response to future grant or contract solicitations are not part of the staff working on the PSRCC?

Response:  See response to #1. 
3. Task V (Develop and Implement Dissemination Plan) calls for developing a plan for the dissemination, implementation and adoption of findings.  Does this task also require that the contractor budget for an carry out any of the proposed items in the plan as part of the PSRCC contract, or will implementation of the plan be a separate initiative?
Response:  Yes, some implementation can be expected given it is within reasonable budget allocations of the contract.  If sizeable implementation efforts beyond current budget projections are needed, the Government may consider modifying the contract. 
4. Section L.8: Please confirm that exhibits can use font sizes less than 11 point pitch as long as the text is readable to the reviewer.

Response:  All materials submitted must be at least 11 point pitch.

5. Section L.8:  Please confirm that the title page, table of contents, glossary, section dividers, and cross reference matrices are not included in the 100 page count and are not required to be double spaced.  Typically these items are not included in the page count.

Response:  Affirmed.  At the same time, Agency expects offerors to honor its intent to keep technical proposals succinct and to the point.  Unnecessary pages are not well received. 
6. Section L.8: Please confirm that the offeror can select the page margins in preparing the proposal.

Response.  Yes, the offeror can select the page margins.

7. Section L.8: Please confirm that Microsoft Word Times New Roman, Size 11 is considered 11 point pitch.  If not, please advise the Microsoft Word font size is required.

Response:  Microsoft Word Times New Roman, Size 11 is considered 11 point pitch.

8. Section L.7.c:  The sentence indicates that the proposal should be divided in three parts.  Please confirm the number of parts as it appears to be four in other sections of the RFP.

Response:  Section L.7.c. is an error. The proposal should be divided in four parts, Technical, Past Performance, Small Disadvantaged Business Participation Plan and Business Proposal. 

9. Section L.9.(1):  Is the prime and subcontractor required to provide 5 contracts each?  Please confirm total number of contracts to be provided.

Response:  For past performance evaluation, the prime contractor should provide 5 past performance evaluations of contracts completed during the past three years and those that are currently in process.  For major subcontractors (offeror’s best judgement) past performance evaluations should also be provided, there is no specific number of past performance evaluations for subcontractors.

10. Section A:  Of the originals and copies for each of the four sections (Technical Past Performance, SDB Plan and Business), please specify which documents, if any, need to be bound.

Response:  The sections of the proposal do not need to be bound. It is asked that they are provided in a manner that is easy to read, some offeors put them in notebooks.

11. Section A: In addition to the submission of documents by hard copy, will you also require electronic submission of documents via Internet, CD-ROM, or both?

Response:  The proposal should submit their proposal in hard copy, in the quantities noted in the RFP.
12. On page 76, Section L.7.c., the RFP divides the proposal into three parts (Technical Proposal, Past Performance Information, and Business Proposal) and four parts (Technical Proposal, Past Performance Information, Small Disadvantaged Business Participation Plan, and Business Proposal).  On page 79, Section L.8.a.4, Past Performance and the Small Disadvantaged Business Participation Plan are listed as being part of the Technical Proposal.  Please clarify the separate sections that should be included in the entire proposal response.

Response:  AHRQ apologizes for the confusion.  There are four parts to the proposal response:  Technical, Past Performance Information, Small Disadvantaged Business Participation Plan and Business Plan.

13. On page 82, Section L.9.1, the RFP requests “A list of the last five (5) contracts and subcontracts completed during the past three years and all contracts and subcontracts currently in process.”  Should offerors submit a list of all contracts or all contracts that are relevant to the proposed scope of work?  Is there a limit on the number of contracts that should be listed and for which evaluation forms should be submitted?

Response:  Past performance evaluation of contracts that are relevant to the proposed scope of work are more helpful to the Government in evaluating past performance, so these are preferred.  There is no limit on the number of past performance evaluation forms that can be submitted.
14. Task 6 of the Statement of Work (RFP p. 25, Section C.3) describes the Steering Committee to be formed by the selected contractor.  Are members of this committee to be paid?

Response:  Steering Committee members do not get paid.  Their expenses for travel and per diem for the meetings held in Rockville, MD are to be covered by the Contractor's budget.  

15.  RFP page 21, Subtask 4.1.3 Website, specifies than an existing website shall be maintained and updated.  Also on page 21, Subtask 4.1.3.2 states that “The Contractor-developed website shall…”  Are these different websites?


Response:  They are the same Website. 
16. RFP page 22, Subtask 4.1.3.3 states that the contractor shall have “sufficient bandwith to meet  project needs.”  Are there utilization bandwith statistics available for the current website?


Response:  Peak bandwidth to date is at approximately 300mb.
17.  RFP page 21, Subtask 4.1.2. E-mail, what are the specific requirements envisioned for a PKI e-mail solution?  Will the contractor be setting up and managing e-mail accounts, managing other AHRQ contractor certificates, etd., is is this just for the use of the contractor’s employees in communication with other related parties?


Response:  The present PSRCC web site retains an e-mail list serve 
capability where individuals can e-mail other individuals or groups, 
including the ability to send attachments.  This capability simply identifies 
the person via their 
primary e-mail address; no new e-mail addresses are 
created.  The present listserv is an asp-based functional module; however, 
it is not the intent to mandate a specific technology solution, including PKI.  
For security requirements refer to the NIST guidelines and federal 
laws/regulations on security standards associated with information 
systems supporting the Federal Government.


There are presently 932 e-mail accounts.  There are 20 group lists.

18. RFP page 21, Subtask 4.1.3.1 states “The Contractor shall develop a website continuation plan …”  Please give a more specific definition of a “continu8ation plan.”  Is this a migration plan with a specific target platform?  If so, what are the target hardware platform, web server plat form (IIS, Apache, Tomcat), operating system, application code, and database used for this site?


Response:  A continuation plan is a migration plan.  As the system will 
likely reside at the contractor’s site, the determination of a specific 
technology platform will be left to the determination of the contractor.  
However, keep in mind that all information systems supporting the Federal 
Government efforts 
must comply with security standards, which the 
response to question 17 discusses.

19. In regard to RFP Subtask 4.1.3.3 (page 22), is there any information on the current and future number of users?  In regard to RFP Subtask 4.1.3.4 (page 22), is there information on the current and future disk storage required?


Response:  There are presently approximately 950 users.  The present 
system uses 
under 500 meg.

20.  Task 2.1 on page 18 of the RFP addresses Data Collection and Analysis aspects of Technical Assistance tasks.  Can you tell us about the work done to date by the incumbent or the Agency in this area and share plans for the nature and level of effort in this task area in the future?


Response:  Sections A.5, Task 2 and Sub-task 2.1 describe the nature of 
technical assistance tasks, including data collection and analysis.  These 
descriptions are based on activities that have occurred within the recent 
past as well as projections for the future.  Individual grantees, of course, 
are responsible for analyzing the data collected as part of their projects.  
The coordinating center contractor may be called upon to assist the 
Agency in making sense of the data and in synthesizing reported data 
from grants and contracts.
21.  The RFP Section on Key Personnel refers to experience in the “SOW’s specialty services field.”  Should we interpret this to mean Patient Safety, or more broadly to encompass the fields of knowledge transfer and innovation diffusion, technical assistance, data collection and analysis, coordination, and communication and facilitation of meetings and conferences?


Response:  You can interpret it to mean experience with Section C 
content and tasks, and descriptions in Sections L.8 and M that focus on 
key personnel.
22. Regarding the subcontracting requirement of this RFP, please clarify whether the percentages cited in the second paragraph on page one of the RFP apply to the total subcontract value or to the total contract.

Response:  The percentages apply to the total subcontracted value.       
23. Is this work associated with a contract award as a result of this request for proposal going to be performed on the Government site or at the Contractor site?


Response:  Work will be performed at the contractor's site.

24.  Subtask 1.3 Coordinate with HIT, ISDRN, KTAS, etc, Page 17.  How do the efforts of the Patient Safety Resource Coordinating Center relate to those in the anticipated RFP for the Health Information Technology Resource Center?  Does participation in one of these competitive procurements prevent participation in the other due to a conflict of interest?

Response:  The relationship and potential coordinating activities between 

the Patient Safety Research Coordinating Center and the Heath 
Information Technology Resource Center are described on pages 13 and 
17.  Some helpful coordinating activities have been suggested.  It is up to 
the offeror to offer others.  Participation in one of the above referenced        

      competitive procurements does not prevent participation in another.    

25. Subtask 2.1 Data Collection and Analysis, Page 18.  How will the data be submitted to AHRQ?  Will this be done by CD or will there be Electronic Data Interchange systems be in place?  What formats will be required by AHRQ?  Will this data be structured or unstructured?  Is there a data warehouse currently built that will handle this de-identified data?


Response:  The present process is for each grantee to ship their data 
directly to AHRQ via CD and a written letter.  We then confirm receipt and 
secure the CDs.  At this point, data is not being entered by the contractor.  
This is because the data warehouse is still under development by another 
contractor.  AHRQ expects the data warehouse to be ready for use early 
in fiscal year 2005.


It is the vision that once the data warehouse development is complete, the 
contractor will have access to enter and look at the data.  The data being 
provided to date is generally unstructured, so anticipate data cleaning.  
We anticipate somewhere between 80,000 and 160,000 medical error 
records to be processed.

26. Subtask 2.2 Instrument Development and Selection, Page 18.  Will this technical assistance include, for example, software development best practices guidelines and standard operating procedures or might it include actual software development efforts for the Grantees?


Response:  Technical assistance is meant to take the form of providing 
useful 
guidance rather than actually undertaking development efforts for 
grantees.

27. Task 6 Steering Committee.  Will AHRQ suggest potential members of the Steering Committee?  Will Steering Committee members be reimbursed for their time through this contract? 


Response:  In conjunction with PSRCC project officer guidance, the 
contractor is to develop the criteria for nominating and selecting Steering 
Committee members.  The PSRCC project officer will help in defining the 
universe of potential candidates that, in turn, will help ensure adequate 
representation among grantees and stakeholders.  Steering Committee 
members will not be reimbursed for their time, but will be reimbursed 
travel expenses and per diem.  
28. Subtask 6.2 Holding Steering Committee Meetings.  Will there be costs to the contract associated with the use of the John M. Eisenberg building meeting facilities?  Will the contractor be responsible for travel and per diem costs for the Committee members or any other attendees?


Response:  There are no costs associated with the use of the John M. 
Eisenberg building meeting facilities.  The contractor is responsible for 
travel and per diem costs of for Committee members, but not for other 
attendees.

29. Past Performance, Section L.9, page 82.  Should the past and current contracts included in response to his requirement be limited to those that are relevant to the Statement of Work?


Response:  Yes, if possible.

30. Subcontracting, Section L.10, page 87.  Please clarify the SDB subcontracting goals mentioned in the second paragraph of the solicitation letter and in Section L.10.B(g).  Is the goal of 23% based on a percentage of total planned subcontract dollars, as mentioned in the letter, or as a percentage of total contract value for the base period, as mentioned on page 87?


Response:  The goal of 23% is based on a percentage of total planned 
subcontract dollars.
31. In subtask 4.1.3: Website, the RFP States: “The Contractor shall maintain and update an existing website for the entire program of AHRQ-funded projects included under the coordinating center contract.”

a. To provide accurate estimates of effort and cost to support this system, can AHRQ provided a complete technical description of the existing website that must be transitioned and maintained?  This would include an overall systems architecture document that lists all components of the system to be re-used:

· Hardware and Networking Requirements (servers, operating systems & configuration requirements)

· 3rd Part (Off the Shelf) Software required (versions and quantities) (e.g. Web server software, application server, database server software, HTML development software)

· Custom Software developed for this project (source language, source code, source documentation, and function of software).

b. Is there any component of the existing web site that is or will become obsolete and need to be replaced during the course of the contract period?
c. Are there any components of this system that is considered proprietary by the current contractor, and will not be transitioned to the new contractor?  If so, please provide a complete list of business/ technical functions served by this software, and documentation of the interdependencies between these proprietary solutions and the remainder of the solution that will be transitioned and reused.
Response:  The present web site is a predominately .asp-based system that has components for e-mail, forums, calendars, and directories.  

a. As the web site will mostly be located at the contractor site, it is left to the contractor to determine the hardware and networking requirements, including software.  There is no custom developed, proprietary software associated with this project.  The present web site is a predominately .asp-based system that has components for e-mail, forums, calendars and directories along with various other pages that provide links to non PSRCC web sites.

b. There are no components that have been identified as obsolete.

c. There are no proprietary components.

32. What other guidance can AHRQ provide regarding products, procedures, software, or meeting obligations that have been made by the first Coordinating Center contractor that the new contractor may be obligated to fulfill?


Section C was prepared with the intent of providing necessary and


sufficient information for describing the obligations that the contractor will 
need to fulfill under the new contract.  Since AHRQ has described what 
needs to be achieved, our guidance to offerors is to describe in their 
proposals how they propose to achieve the "what." 
33. Can AHRQ provide a list of the requests for technical assistance received by the current contractor and some illustrative examples of how the assistance was delivered?


Response:  While a list of all the requests for technical assistance is not 
possible to provide, representative examples from past requests include 
the following: assistance with wording of question on race/ethnicity for a 
grantee's reporting tool, review of a national survey of practicing 
physicians regarding design, lay-out, and procedures for enhancing return 
rate, assistance to an AHRQ project officer for  a list of grantees that are 
using 
patient safety indicators, review and usability testing of a grantee's 
patient safety website,  questions regarding HIPPA requirements, request 
for a list of patient safety experts with a focus in child health to participate 
in a Delphi panel, identification of a resource for translating a patient 
safety 
document into Spanish, and assistance to an AHRQ project officer 
for incorporating comments into an AHRQ report to Congress. 


While it is difficult to predict individual requests for assistance, topics that 
can be anticipated to generate wider-spread interest (e.g., HIPPA 
requirements, dissemination strategies) are addressed through scheduled 
conference calls with the proceedings posted on the PSRCC Web site.  

34. Can AHRQ provide a list of the current members of the Steering Committee?  Does AHRQ anticipate there will be overlap between the previous Steering Committee and the new one?


Response:  The current Steering Committee members are C. Andrew 
Brown, Pascale Carayon, John R. Combes, Nancy Donaldson, Victoria 
Fraser, Harold Kaplan, Christine Kovner, Kate Lapane, Richard Lilford, 
Pamela H. Mitchell, Richard Platt, Jill R. Scott-Cowiezell, and Eric J. 
Thomas.  It will be the contractor's responsibility to propose criteria for 
consideration by which Steering Committee members are to be nominated 
and selected.

